
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2021 

VIRTUAL MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
(MEETING WILL NOT BE HELD AT THE TOWN HALL) 

 

TELEPHONE: 
    DIAL (FOR HIGHER QUALITY, DIAL A NUMBER BASED ON YOUR CURRENT LOCATION): 

        US: +1 253 215 8782 OR +1 346 248 7799 OR +1 669 900 9128 OR +1 301 715 8592 OR +1 312 626 6799 OR 

+1 646 558 8656  
MEETING ID: 893 1939 2617 

 
EXPLANATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Trustees receive the first opportunity to discuss each agenda item. Following Trustee discussion, the Mayor will 
open the meeting for public comment. Each person will receive the opportunity to speak one time on each 

agenda item.  The Mayor will provide the time allotted for public comment prior to the agenda item 
discussion.  At the end of the time allotted the speaker will be muted and will not be recognized again for 

discussion of the same agenda item. If you wish to speak, press *9 on your phone to let us know. 
 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 
. Christmas Light Winners 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Staff Reports 

1. Administrator’s Report 

    COVID-19 Update 

Public Works & Utilities Report 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Treasurer's Report 

 

2. Treasurer’s Report 

Disbursements 
3. Disbursements 

Regular Business 
4. Resolution 2021-01 Public Posting 

5. Paonia Tree Board Appointments 

6. Advisory Water Committee – Term Limits 

7. Ordinance 2021-TBD Outdoor Lighting Regulations 

Consent Agenda 

8. Regular Minutes: 

11/24/2020 

12/15/2020 

Special Minutes: 

12/28/2020 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

Liquor License Renewal: 

Aspen Yoga Inc dba Louie’s Pizza My Heart 

Mayor’s Report 

Committee Reports 

9. Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Tree Board 

Executive Session 

10. For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not involving: any specific 

employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open session; any member of this body or any 

elected official; the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official; or 

personnel policies that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees; specific 

to Town Administrator 6-month review. 

For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 

questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); Specific to Eric Pace v. Town of Paonia 

 

Adjournment 
  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

4



 

January 8, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Christmas Light Winners 

Summary:   

As chosen by Amanda Mojarro family 

 

Notes: 

 

Attached are the three (3) prize winners for Christmas lights for 2020. 

 

1st prize - $75 

2nd prize - $50 

3rd prize - $25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

5

.



 1ST PLACE – 313 NORTH FORK AVE 

 

2ND PLACE – 225 CLARK AVE 

CHRISTMAS LIGHT WINNERS 

6

.



3RD PLACE – 319 POPLAR 

1ST HONORABLE 

MENTION – 224 DORRIS AVE 

 

7

.



2ND HONORABLE MENTION – 635 SHADY LANE 

8

.



 

January 5, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 

Administrator’s Report 

    COVID-19 Update 

Public Works & Utilities Report 

Police Report 

Attorney Report  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VW – verbal warning 

WW – written warning 

CIT - citation 

CAA – clear adult arrest 

UTL – unable to locate 

UNF - unfounded 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

: 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

9

1.



 

 

 

  

Administrators Report for January 12, 2021 

Previous Meeting Follow-up: 

1. The company the Town is registered with for disposal of property and materials declared surplus 
is Public Surplus. 
 

Updates: 

1. SGM – mapping – requested new year update. 
2. SGM – Asset Inventory – requested new year update. 
3. SCADA System at 1MG – update included in Public Works Report. 
4. COVID-19 sewer testing – update included in Public Works Report. 
5. Virtual tour of the water and sewer plants scheduled for February.  
6. Grants – CVRF - The Town has received its first reimbursement of CARES Act funds from DOLA.  

The expenditure and reporting cycle for these funds was extended to end of 2021. 
CDOT Revitalize Main Street – reimbursement request submitted.  Second phase – installing 
tables and bench seating at and around Town Hall is underway with orders shipping to Town 
March 5th. This phase supports the COVID -19 objective to offer outdoors areas for people and 
reduce congregating inside shops and restaurants. GOCO Parks Master Plan – The steering 
committee has finalized the four topics for community meetings, to take place after the new 
year.  That information will drive the final draft plan. The finalization of this grant has been 
extended. 
GOCO – Parks, Recreation & Trails Master Plan – WSC is scheduling the community meetings 
virtually to gather community input. 
Teen Center – Clisset, LLC is finalizing the rehab plan for final approval and receipt of building 
permit. 

Other items: 

1. Countywide housing study – This discussion topic never went beyond a discussion.  With Elyse 
Casselberry moving to City of Delta I do not anticipate this will be moving forward soon. In the 
meantime, I am evaluating other options to complete a local study. 

2. Tree Inventory and Assessment – the State Forest Service inventory and assessment should be 
complete and received by the end of January 2021. 

3. The Marijuana working group have received the materials for review. The finalized review draft 
will come back to the Board in February.  

4. Building Department – I am in discussions with multiple other municipalities regarding the 
creation of one building department to serve the communities in Delta County. Paonia is the only 
municipality that has not updated to the 2018 IRC.  The work to do so was completed in March of 

From the Desk of Corinne Ferguson                                                   
Town Administrator/Clerk 
12/10/2020 

10

1.



 

this year and I plan to send out the updated Code after January 1st for the Board to review so we 
can move forward with the update as soon as possible. Shum Coda Associates, dba Colorado 
Code Consulting agreed to the interim contract and continues with the Town to date. 

5. Master Plan Update – the Master Plan currently is being reviewed and modified for review in five 
sections.  Section 1 & 2 will be provided to the Board and Planning Commission this month for 
input. 

6. Collaborating with Blue Sage Center and DMEA/Elevate to offer Wi-Fi at Town park. 
7. Evaluating security of remote access to water and sewer treatment plants in light of Black Hills 

Energy remote tampering incidents. 

Thank you, 

Corinne Ferguson 

 

11

1.



Public Works Report – 1/12/2021 

 

1. Spillage overflow and plant production spreadsheet will be included the 2nd meeting of 

each month. 

2. Sanitary Survey update: will be included the 2nd meeting of each month until completed. 

3. Status with JDS Hydro – Update stated on target for scheduled completion for end of 

March. 

4. Browns-Hill – COVID positive delay – on site to complete 1/12/21. 

5. Bulk water system – all i.t. information provided. Building software now. Requested 

estimated date of install. 

6. Parts on back order for repair of one small leak on Lamborn Mesa. 

7. Snowplow is out – running published route which is updated on the website. 

8. Sanding is underway – mag chloride is still not available.  

9. Increased ammonia levels at sewer plant – Plan to invest in additives to combat issues at 

approximate cost of $2,000 for initial treatment and $1,500 a year after for maintenance.  

10. Waiting for costs from SGS Labs regarding wastewater sample testing for COVID-19. 

11. Boring for water service line January 22nd on Meadowbrook Avenue. 

12. High School meter installation re-scheduled for February school break due to low 

temperatures causing frozen meters. 

13. Evaluating best procedure for potholes as they present themselves during the wet season. 

14. Beginning to evaluate and schedule street and waterline projects for 2021.  

 

 

*Added to permanent meeting packet* 

12

1.



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   12/15/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:25:01 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
19:41:11 Traffic Stop

Address
NIAGARA AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE., Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   12/16/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
16:20:37 Certified Vin

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

16:23:51 LOST/FOUND PROP PPD PPD
17:54:07 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
19:46:39 Traffic Stop

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
4TH ST, Paonia, CO 
4TH St., Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   12/17/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
16:21:33 Certified Vin

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   12/18/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
11:21:58 Parking Problem PPD PPD        WW 
12:07:29 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW

14:27:46 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
16:37:57 VIN INSPECTION

CEDAR DR, Paonia, CO 
RIO GRAND AVE., Paonia, CO

GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

18:15:29 AGENCY ASSIST DIST3
21:35:38 Traffic Stop

RAGGED MOUNTAIN DR, Paonia, CO     PPD 
Grand AVE, Paonia, CO                  PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   12/19/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
08:09:30 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
12:28:46 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
13:09:16 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
13:54:57 Traffic Stop

LAMBORN MESA RD , Paonia, CO 
Onarga AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE., Paonia, CO 
3RD St, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

13

1.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   12/20/20
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
17:10:39 FIRE 2ND ST, Paonia, CO                                                             PPD PPD
18:06:31 ANIMAL CONTROL GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   12/21/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:51:08 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   12/22/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:11:59 Code Enforce PPD PPD
10:19:58 Code Enforce PPD PPD
10:49:24 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
13:15:28 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
13:26:40 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO 
2ND ST, Paonia, CO
LAMBORN MESA RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   12/23/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:38:30 Parking Problem PPD PPD WW
15:17:55 Traffic Stop

Address
3rd St, Paonia, CO 
2ND St, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   12/24/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:17:25 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
15:29:45 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
16:50:29 Information

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO
3rd St., Paonia, CO
MEADOWBROOK BLVD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   12/25/20
Time Nature
19:50:06 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
SHADY LN, Paonia, CO

Agency  Loctn  Dsp 
PPD DIST3 

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   12/26/20

14

1.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 12/15/20` and `00:00:01 12/31/20`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
12:49:48 VIN INSPECTION PPD DIST3
14:23:32 Traffic Stop

BETHLEHEM RD, Paonia, CO 
3RD St, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3 VW

18:23:27 Traffic Stop GRAND AVENUE, Paonia, CO                                                PPD CIT
21:13:25 SUSPICIOUS 5TH ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UTL
Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   12/27/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:55:19 Code Enforce PPD PPD WW

15:08:57 Traffic Stop PPD PPD VW
16:45:07 Disturbance

Address
3rd St. Paonia, CO

Samuel Wade RD., Paonia, CO 
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   12/28/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
01:41:45 Disturbance PPD PPD
14:45:15 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
16:49:49 VIN INSPECTION PPD
19:02:58 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
20:04:34 SUSPICIOUS

Address
BOX ELDER DR, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
Alder DR, Paonia, CO
2ND ST,  Paonia, CO  
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Date Occurred:   12/29/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:31:59 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
10:42:48 ALARM

Address
LAMBORN MESA RD, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

11:07:55 WELFARE CHECK ALDER CT, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
14:30:40 CITIZEN ASSIST GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   12/30/20
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:57:15 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
19:44:20 Traffic Stop

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Total reported: 49

CIT-6, VW-5, WW-7, UTL-115

1.



 

January 5, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

16

2.



17

2.



18

2.



19

2.



20

2.



21

2.



22

2.



23

2.



24

2.



25

2.



26

2.



27

2.



28

2.



29

2.



30

2.



31

2.



 

January 5, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

32

3.



33

3.



34

3.



35

3.



36

3.



37

3.



38

3.



39

3.



40

3.



41

3.



42

3.



43

3.



44

3.



45

3.



46

3.



47

3.



48

3.



 

January 8, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Resolution 2021-01 Public Posting 

Summary:   

Annual update of posting place and newspaper of record. 

 

Notes: 

 

Per statute at the first meeting of the year the Board needs to set the public posting place and 

newspaper of record for the Town. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

49

4.



Resolution 2021-01 – Public Posting 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-01 

 

 

DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC PLACE FOR THE POSTING OF NOTICES OF PUBLIC 

MEETINGS AND THE OFFICIAL PUBLICATION NEWPAPER OF GENERAL CIRULATION 

FOR THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO. 

 

 

WHEREAS, during the 1991 Legislative session, the Colorado State Legislature passed legislation under 

Senate Bill 33 providing for requirements of municipal governments, as well as other local public bodies, 

concerning public meetings; and 

 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. 24-6-402, as amended by Senate Bill 33, provides that timely notice of any public 

meeting be posted in a designated public place within the boundaries of the local public body no less than 

twenty-four (24) hours prior to the holding of any such meeting; and 

 

WHEREAS, all public bodies are required by state law to publish certain notices in newspaper(s) of 

general circulation; and 

 

WHEREAS, all public bodies are required to designate annually at its first regular meeting the place or 

places where such public notices are to be posted. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, that notices of all public meetings requiring a minimum of 

twenty-four (24) hours prior notice by posting at a designated public place pursuant to Senate Bill 33 

(C.R.S. 24-6-402) shall be posted in the following place: 

 

Town Hall, 214 Grand Avenue, Paonia, Colorado 

 

   The Official Publication newspaper of general circulation is: 

 

 Delta County Independent (DCI), Delta, Colorado 

 

 

ADOPTED this 12th day of January 2021, by the Town Board of Trustees of the Town of 

Paonia. 

 

     TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

     ______________________________________   

     Mary Bachran, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                   

Corinne Ferguson, Town Administrator/Clerk 

50

4.



 

January 8, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Paonia Tree Board Appointments 

Summary:   

Filling vacant tree board seats. 

 

Notes: 

 

Article 7 Section 2-7-20, updated via Ordinance 2020-05 states that: The Tree Board shall 

consist of a minimum of two (2) and a maximum of six (6) volunteer community members, 

who need not reside within the limits of the Town and one (1) member of the Board of 

Trustees. Members shall serve without compensation. There will be a chair and secretary of 

the Tree Board, as chosen by majority vote of its members. All Tree Board members shall be 

appointed by the Board of Trustees. The terms of office for the Tree Board shall be two (2) 

years renewable by the Board of Trustees; and the member of the Board of Trustees consistent 

with his/her term of office. 

 

Currently the tree board has two (2) open positions.  The Town received four (4) 

applications/letters of interest. 

 

In no order: 

Paula Martin – current Board chair 

Greg Hottinger 

Moriah Whoolilurie  

Roger Baril – current member 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

51

5.



 
 
 
 
January 5, 2021 
 
Paonia Town Council: 
 
I have served on the Paonia Tree Board for the last three years. This letter is to inform you I am 
interested in serving another term. 
 
During the last three years the Paonia Tree Board has hosted and celebrated Arbor Day each 
year involving the students of Paonia Elementary School and local businesses.  Paonia has also 
been recognized as a Tree City USA for the last three years.  This last summer Sick Tree Days 
became a reality.  It has been a project in the planning for the last year. 
 
The Paonia Tree Board is a vital component of the community with numerous projects in the 
planning stages.  I am very interested in continuing to serve on The Tree Board. 
 
Thank you for your support and consideration, 
 
Paula Martin 
Paonia Tree Board Chair 
 

52

5.



53

5.



54

5.



55

5.



 

January 5, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Advisory Water Committee – Term Limits 

Summary:   

Board set term limits for newly created Advisory Water Board. 

 

Notes: 

 

Ordinance 2020-09, Section 2-10-20 (3) states: Appointment to membership shall be by 

the Board of Trustees.  The initial term of the Committee membership shall be staggered, with 

the Board of Trustees setting the number of Committee members and the length of their term.  

Upon expiration of the initial terms, any subsequent appointees shall serve a term of three (3) 

years, unless they no longer qualify to serve on the Committee or are removed from the 

Committee by vote of the Board of Trustees.   Vacancies on the Committee shall be filled for 

the remaining term in the same manner as the initial appointment.   

 

The Board appointed the three (3) open seats at the December 15th Board meeting but did not 

set the staggered terms.  The Board needs to set the initial staggered terms for the three (3) 

members.  My suggestion – for ease and continuity is to stagger the initial three (3) year terms 

with one (1) expiring each year for the first three years.  This will create a potential turnover of 

only one advisory board member a year.  I would suggest terms end in August, to allow new 

trustees to take seat and familiarize themselves with the committee’s roles and responsibilities 

prior to appointing the new member. 

 

I also suggest a random drawing of names to determine whose term ends when for this initial 

three (3) year time period.  

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

56

6.



 

January 8, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Ordinance 2021-TBD Outdoor Lighting Regulations 

Summary:   

Dark Skies approved and recommended ordinance regarding lighting within the Town of 

Paonia. 

 

Notes: 

 

The draft ordinance included in the packet for review is not formatted.  All clerk notes are 

included in the document for review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

57

7.



Paonia Municipal Code X.X 
 

 

CHAPTER X 

SECTION X 

 

Outdoor Lighting Regulations 

 

Subsections: 

6-5-1[VS1] Purpose  

6-5-2 Definitions  

6-5-3 Applicability  

6-5-4 General Provisions and Requirements 

6-5-5 Nonconforming Lights. 

6-5-6 Administration and Enforcement. 

6-5-7 Appeals and Variances. 

 

6-5-1 Purpose 

 
1.1 Maintain nighttime visibility and safety while maintaining the rural atmosphere and small town 

character of Paonia. 

 

1.2 Minimize light pollution and glare. Protect citizens from unwanted outdoor lighting that would 

enter homes and businesses.  

 

1.3 Promote energy conservation by promoting efficient use of lighting. 

 

1.4 Prevent unnecessary or inappropriate outdoor lighting that impacts the dark sky resource, 

qualifying Paonia as an International Dark Sky Association (IDA) designated community.  

 

1.5 Help mitigate sleep and wildlife migration related issues through use of minimum necessary 

outdoor lighting and by using light bulbs with a warmer color.  

 

6-5-2 Definitions 

 

2.1 Terms used in Outdoor Lighting Regulations 

 

2.1.1    Correlated color temperature (CCT): A specification of the color appearance of the 

light emitted by a lamp, relating its color to the color of light from a reference source 

when heated to a particular temperature, measured in degrees kelvin (K). (1)  

2.1.2 Dark Sky resource: The dark sky unpolluted by artificial light sources typically as 

seen on moonless nights. 

 

2.1.3 Fully shielded fixture: An outdoor light fixture that is designed and mounted such 

that the shielding directs all light downward below the horizontal plane. 

 

2.1.4 Lumens: A measure of brightness that is defined as a unit of luminous flux in the 

International System of Units, that is equal to the amount of light given out through a 

solid angle by a source of one candela intensity radiating in all directions. (1) 
 

58

7.



2.1.22.1.5 Light Trespass: Light falling where it is not intended to illuminate property, 

grounds, or buildings in an objectionable manner. 

 

2.1.32.1.6 Adaptive Controls: devices such as timers, motion-sensors, light-sensitive 

switches, and other means used to actively regulate the emission of light from light 

fixtures. 

 

2.1.42.1.7 Define for Paonia: Multiunit residential properties an undivided or 

combination of undivided lots under one or more ownership or lease arrangements 

occupied by multiple dwelling units 

 

2.1.52.1.8 Define for Paonia: Non-residential an undivided or combination of 

undivided lots under one or more ownership or lease arrangements used for 

commercial, industrial, lodging, institutional, or government use. 

 

2.1.62.1.9 Define for Paonia: Single family residential properties an undivided or 

combination of undivided lots under one ownership occupied by a single family 

residential structure and any accessory dwelling structures. 

 

2.1.72.1.10 Define for Paonia: Mixed use an undivided or combination of undivided lots 

under one or more ownership or lease arrangements used for a mixture of 

commercial, industrial, institutional, government, and residential use. 

 

2.1.82.1.11 Lumens per Net Acre: The amount of light specified in lumens that is 

allocated to the developed portion (net acre) of the gross size of a lot parcel (Note 2) 

 

6-5-3 Applicability 

 

3.1 All exterior outdoor lighting installed after the effective date of this ordinance shall conform to the 

requirements established by this chapter 6 (TBR) section 5 (TBR). 

 

3.2 Nonconforming Lighting: All lawful nonconforming lighting prior to the effective date of this 

ordinance shall be regulated according to requirements defined in section 6.5.5 (TBR). 

  

 

6-5-4 GENERAL PROVISIONS and REQUIREMENTS 

(A)  All non-exempt outdoor light fixtures and illuminating devices permanently or temporarily installed 

outdoors, including but not limited to devices to illuminate signs, shall meet the following requirements: 

 

(1) Exterior lighting shall be fully shielded so no light rays are emitted at angles which will allow 

the light to pass directly off of the premises appurtenant to the fixture.  
 

(2) All Exterior lighting shall be shielded so that all light rays are emitted by the installed fixture 

at angles below the horizontal plane. 

 

(2) All fixtures designed to illuminate signs or structures shall be fully shielded and with a CCT 

as specified in items A1 and A4 of General Provisions and Requirements. The lighting 

fixtures shall be mounted above the area of the sign or structure to be illuminated. 

 

(3) Blinking, flashing, rotating or moving lights are prohibited 

59

7.



 

(4) Maximum Color Temperature of all lighting fixtures: The correlated color temperature (CCT) of 

any outdoor lighting fixture shall not exceed three thousand degrees kelvin (3000°K). CK 

NOTES: 3000 Kelvin is equal to 60 watts which is also equal to 850 lumens. 
 

(5) The following lumen limits are established to prevent over lighting and are not intended to be 

achieved. Each site should use the lowest amount of lumens needed for the site to provide for 

safety and functionality:  

 

a. For non-residential, and mixed use properties the total amount of outdoor lighting shall 

not exceed twenty-five thousand (25,000) lumens per net acre. Each lighting fixture shall 

be limited to 1500 lumens. 

b. For multiunit residential properties the total amount of outdoor lighting, shall not exceed 

twenty thousand (20,000) lumens per net acre. Each fixture shall be limited to 850 

lumens. 

c. For single family residential properties, the total amount of outdoor lighting, shall not 

exceed six thousand five hundred (6,500) lumens. Each fixture shall be limited to 850 

lumens. 

d. All properties shall use adaptive controlled lighting where practical. 

CK NOTES: Suggest including a conversion chart as an attachment for 

kelvins, watts, lumens 
(6) Unshielded Lighting shall be prohibited. 

(7) Existing overhead street lighting owned, operated, or leased by the Town of Paonia shall be 

compliant with the listed lighting requirements in sections 6-5-4 (A) items 1 and 4 and shall be 

limited to a lumens cap of 7000 lumens per lamp, unless required for safety reasons as approved 

by town council. CK NOTES: our light upgrade was dictated by kelvins not lumens 

– should we update to be consistent to the criteria we used? 

(8)  Lighting Curfews:  

 

a. Lighting used at community and athletic events shall be turned off one hour after the 

conclusion of the event. 

b. Lighting in Town buildings shall be turned off one hour after close of business unless 

authorized by appropriate Town authority for safety or maintenance reasons. 

c. Commercial lighting shall be turned off one hour after close of business, except for safety 

of employees or customers if operations are throughout the night. 

d. Adaptive Controls (such as motion, light sensitive detectors, etc.) shall be used in outdoor 

commercial and residential lighting where practical. 

 

(9)  New Public lighting, owned and operated by the Town of Paonia, either street lights, 

walkway lights, or external building lighting shall be allowed as recommended by the Town 

Manager Administrator (TBR) in situations where a public health hazard exists which can only be 

mitigated by artificial light at night and shall be in compliance with Subsection (A). 

a.  Adaptive controls or curfews shall be employed in all new public outdoor lighting 

installations. CK NOTES: DMEA does not support adaptive controls on 

lighting operated through their service.  In order to update Town streetlights 

60

7.



at the lower kelvin, the Town had to purchase and “own” the lights/ I would 

suggest adaptive controls or curfews may… instead of shall. 

(10) The following restrictions shall be required on the installation and operation of outside 

illuminated signs 

a. Luminance levels for operation between sunset and sunrise shall not exceed 100 nits 

(100 candelas per square meter) as measured under conditions of a full white display. 

b. Sign illumination shall be extinguished completely one hour after sunset and remain 

off until one hour before sunrise.  

c. The luminous/illuminated surface area of an individual sign shall not exceed 200sq ft.  

 

 

 

(B) The following are exempt from the provisions of Subsection (A). 

 

(1) Lights used to illuminate athletic fields or outdoor recreation areas shall be exempt from 

provisions of subsection (A) provided all of the following conditions are met. 

 

a. Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) lighting guidelines (RP-6) are followed 

according to the appropriate class of play. 

b. Field lighting is provided exclusively for illumination of the surface of play and 

viewing stands, and not for any other applications  

c. Illuminance levels must be adjustable based on the task (e.g., active play vs. field 

maintenance)  

d. Off-site impacts of the lighting will be limited to the greatest practical extent possible  

e. A strict curfew requirement (e.g., lights must be extinguished by one hour after the 

end of activity, and no later than 10pm local time.)  

f. Timers must be installed to prevent lights being left on accidentally over- night by 

automatically extinguishing them  

 

 

(2) Signs, postings which are illuminated by building interior light sources, such as neon signs or 

other lights, provided such signs are lit only during the property owner's business hours. 

 

(3) Official traffic control devices and lights owned and operated by or pursuant to proper 

authority of the United States of America, the State of Colorado or any of their agencies, and such 

other lights as are specifically required by federal or state law. 

 

(4) Lawful vehicle lights. 

 

(5) (5) Holiday lights used during the period of Thanksgiving through January 31.  

(6) CK NOTES: U.S. Flags? 

 

 

61

7.



 

(C) Interior Lighting. 

 

(1) Interior lighting direct rays shall be blocked from trespassing (straying) beyond the property 

boundaries of the source. 

(2) Lights used to illuminate athletic fields, which are on only when the field is in use. remove 

 

 

(Ord 3-1997) 

6-5-5 NONCONFORMING LIGHTS 

 

(A) Lights which were lawfully existing and in use at the time they became nonconforming with 

the requirements of this Section 6-5 by virtue of the initial adoption of this Section, subsequent 

amendment to this Section or by annexation into the Town, may continue to be used and operated 

subject to the limitations of this Section. 

 

(B) The right to operate lawful nonconforming fixtures and or lawful nonconforming lamps shall 

terminate upon any of the following: 

 

(1) Replacement of the light fixture or lamp. 
 

(2) Damage to the light fixture so that the cost of repair is 50% or more of the cost to replace 

it with a conforming fixture. 

 

(C) All nonconforming Public and Private Lighting either, owned or leased shall be brought into 

compliance with section 6.5.4 (TBR) within 10 years from the effective date of this ordinance. 

 

  

 

6-5-6 ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT. 

 

(A) The provisions of this Section shall be administered by the building official or other 

authorized Town officer or employee. 

 

(B) It shall be unlawful to violate any provision of this Section. 

 

(C) Any continuing violation of this Section is hereby declared to be nuisance, which may be 

abated by the Town in any lawful manner, or enjoined by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

(D) No building permit or occupancy permit shall be issued for work which has noncomplying 

light fixtures. CK NOTES: A permit does not trigger coming into conformity under section 

6-5-5 – if the non-conforming light is not affected by the permitted project, why would it 

stop the issuance of a permit? 
 

(E) Changes or upgrades to existing outdoor lighting will utilize town provided education materials on 

shielded fixtures and energy efficient dark sky compliant lamps (TBR)  

 

6-5-7 APPEALS AND VARIANCES. 

 

(A) Any person aggrieved by an interpretation of this Section or decision of the Town made in 

62

7.



the administration of this Section, may appeal the interpretation or decision to the Planning 

Commission (TBR) pursuant to the review procedure of Section TBD7-3-18 of the Paonia Municipal 

Code 

upon payment of a $50.00 (TBR) application fee. CK NOTES: Our variance application fee is 
currently set at $250 
 

(B)  (1) Any person may apply for a variance to the Planning Commission TBR from the 

provisions of this Section upon payment of the $50.00 TBR application fee in accordance with the review 

procedure of Section TBD7-3-18 of the Paonia Municipal Code. 

 

(2) The Planning Commission TBR may grant a variance only upon a determination that the 

following criteria are met:  CK NOTES: Planning Commission currently cannot grant 

a variance, only recommend the Board grant a variance.  The Board would need to provide 

the approval for planning to grant a request. 

 

 

(a) The variance will be consistent with the public health, safety and welfare. 

 

(b) The variance is justified by unreasonable hardship not created by the activities of the 

applicant or strict compliance is unfeasible. 

 

(c) The variance will be substantially consistent with the purposes of this Section to 

avoid nuisances to others, preserve the natural dark sky resource and to maintain IDA community dark 

sky designation, conserve energy, reduce glare, promote traffic and pedestrian safety, preserve the small 

town character of Paonia and promote the 

Town's master plan. 

 

Notes: 

1. Since 2012, the Federal Trade Commission has required that labelling of all light bulbs include 

temperature (Kelvins) and light output (lumens.) Concerning color temperatures, a CCT of about 

5000K approximates sunlight and a CCT of 3000K will have a slightly yellow appearance.  
 

2. Lumens per net acre: For example a one acre (44000sqft) lot is developed with a 6000 sqft multiunit 

condo plus a 2000sqft wrap-around deck , a 2000sqft detached garage and adjacent developed patio of 

1000sqft. Additionally, landscaping improvements around the condo, deck, patio and detached garage 

adds another 5000sq ft bringing the total developed portion of the lot to 16000sqft or 16000/44000 – 

approximately 36% of that gross one acre lot. The lumens allocation for this multiunit example is 

20000/per net acre or 20000*0.36= 7272 lumens. 
 

63

7.



Dark Sky Lighting Ordinance  
Town of Paonia   
Comments Compiled 1/9/2021 
www.darkskiespaonia.com 
 
 
Geoffrey Levens   
446 Vista Drive #13  
 
I think this is excellent! Much needed and very well written. 
Thank you 
 
 
 
 
Rick and Linda Freimuth   
210 North Fork Ave 
 
 Linda and Rick Freimuth are fully on board with Dark Skies Paonia and the Paonia DRAFT Lighting 
Ordinance.  By reducing the bright, accumulated light sources Paonia can reduce power 
consumption along with the benefit of having the best night sky views.  Kudos to all who are working 
on this project. 
 
 
 
 
Caren B von Gontard   
PO Box 30 
 
 I am in support of the Dark Skies initiative and hope this proposal is accepted by our Town 
Council. 
 
 
 
 
Cedar Keshet  
40423 Cedar Ln, Paonia, CO 81428  
 
Dear Town of Paonia, 
Please adapt these Dark Skies measures. I live out of town but the glare of the football field lights 
bothers our neighborhood on Pitkin Mesa. I also can see the light pollution when we try to view the 
night sky. It is so much healthier for the people to have less light at night. It is also beneficial to the 
lovely trees in town to have less or even no light at night. Animals are also benefited by less night 
light. 
It makes our town so much more beautiful to be lit by less.  
Thank you so much! 
 
 
 
 
Matt eland  
907 3rd street, Paonia  
 
Excellent work! 
 
I like what the ordinance is working to do.  
 

64

7.



I think something that would be helpful would be to include a reimbursement program and/a low 
income and elderly clause that aims to reduce the financial buy in. Most people want this but the 
transition point can be hard on people.  
 
A “launch” or compliance date would help also, that way it can be worked towards, completed, and 
then maintained.  
 
Great job! 
Matt 
 
 
 
 
 
George Lindsey 
1200 3rd Street, Unit #6  
 
Hi Aaron.  Some thoughts on the proposed regulation are below.  The first is kinda self-serving - it's 
unclear whether my home is single family or my community is multi-family.  Silver Leaf is a condo.  
My other two points are more general. 
 
Thanks for all your work on this important project! 
 
 
§ 6-5-4 (A) (5) -  
My residence, part of the Silver Leaf HOA, is a “Common Interest Community” (CRS Section 
38-33.103(8)).  The definitions in §6-5-2.1 of the proposed regulation need to clearly distinguish 
between multi-unit (subsection b) and single family (subsection c).   If Silver Leaf, with 12 structures 
and a common house is considered “single family”  the total project lumen limit is 6,500 X 13 = 
84,500 lm   Under subsection b the limit would be 20,000 per net acre = 30,000 lm.  Big difference. 
 
§ 6-5 - ? 
Re street lights – much “light trespass” could be reduced if the fixtures were lowered.  This change 
would not impact traffic or pedestrian safety, but would greatly cut back the light impact on 
neighborhoods.  Suggest a provision that says whenever existing fixtures need to be replaced they 
be no more than xx feet above ground. 
 
§ 6-5-7 - 
The planning commission (not the board) can grant variances?  I think a variance should come from 
a higher level. (Maybe Town Administrator who is responsible to the board, and then only with 
recommendation by Planning Commission - or something like that). 
 
geo 
 
George Lindsey 
1200 3rd Street, Unit #6 
Paonia, CO 81428-8484 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Shane Smith  
   
I did a quick glance at the proposed ordinance, so I could be wrong... I did not see any exception for 
temporary holiday lighting. An exemption should be in there in case it isn't. 

65

7.



 
Thanks, 
 
Shane Smith 
 
 
 
 
 
Barb Guse  
1200 3rd Street, unit 7  
Hi Aaron, 
 
My comments are simple, mainly because reading the ordinance was too tedious for me... :) 
 
1)  I thought some of our streetlights were already designated for removal altogether such as at 3rd 
and Clark? 
 
2)  It seems there would be a lot less light pollution if our street lights were lowered. This wouldn't 
affect safety, and would probably actually improve it by reducing the needless glare from the high 
positions 
 
3)  I hope something can be done about the tennis court lights in Apple Valley Park. There are many 
times when they are on very late into the night and often there's no one even playing. How does that 
happen? 
 
4)  I also hope the motion detector and shield requirements will apply to the warehouses to the 
north of Silver Leaf at 3rd and Clark (the one housing Edesia in particular, but also Frederick Zimmer's 
building)  
 
Thank you so much for your continuing efforts to make this work! 
Love the calendar!!! 
 
Barb Guse 
1200 3rd Street, unit 7 
 
 
 
 
 
Roger Baril  
 
Hi. This is Roger Baril. 
  I read through this excellent work for town ordinance for dark skies.  
  I want to suggest one small easing of restrictions.  
  That is in section B  (1). E.  
  It is written: to shut off lights after events and concerts and sports etc no later than 10PM.   
  Sometimes sport games go into overtime and concerts have a lot more than one encore 
performance..   
  These are not every day things and we want to support more room to party at night for these 
events like Pickin in the Park etc.  
 So I suggest to make it curfew on the lights at least until 11PM for these occasional events.  
Could even be midnight for a special event. 
 
  Very detailed and thorough proposal.   
  Thank you Aaron. 
  Roger 

66

7.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
George Lindsey  
  
 
Thanks Aaron.  I didn't try to digest the dn of net acres.  Will be glad to do so if it will help you, but 
here's a summary of Silver Leaf: 
 
The "recent platt" (sic) that buyers were given by the developer is attached.  I think it's accurate, 
although my guess of built footprint is just that - a guess.  Might be a tad less than 95% of deeded, 
but not much less.  Houses are tight. 
 
My pal Barb (copied) shared her comments with me.  I had forgotten about the obnoxious street 
light at 3rd & clark.  I noticed it last night without my glasses and thought it may have been the 
conjunction of Venus & Moon you (or somebody) wrote about recently, but not so - just a plain old 
sodium lamp twice as high above the street as necessary.  I agree totally with Barb.  It should go. 
 
Timer on the tennis court makes sense, but there should be a limit.  If Friday night HS football lights 
go out 30 minutes after the game, that's maybe 10pm.  Should be the same at Apple Valley. 10pm is 
it. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Carolyn Ringo  
 338 Main, Box 1521  
 
Is there a need to have a streetlight in the middle of a block on a dead end street with no sidewalks? 
 
 
 
 
 
Dorien Bethune  
507 Box Elder ave  
 
Will you please change out the lights at our park in Lee's court,we were annexed in the 70's and are 
part of the town,as long as the park maintenance is taken care that is.Thankyou!! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Justin Hess  1219 2nd. St.  
 
The new street light at the corner of Minnesota and 2nd. St. is WAY too bright. It blocks out the sky all 
the way into our backyard, and is blinding from across the street. The light was installed roughly 6 
months ago, without warning, and is truly a light pollution problem. Can we do anything about it? 

67

7.



Maybe a shield around it?  Please let us know if it can be assimilated into the dark skies initiative. 
Thank you for all you do! 
Sincerely, 
Justin Hess/Ann Marie Gambino 1219 2nd. St. Paonia, CO 81428 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John A. Weiss  
330 North Fork Ave.  
 
Greetings... and I’m confident that a DarkSky designation would be a good thing for Paonia. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lulu Volckhausen  
1003 3rd St  
I fully support dark skies. I’m wondering how you will address lights for holidays or general household 
decorative outdoor lights. 
 

68

7.



 

January 5, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Regular Minutes: 

11/24/2020 

12/15/2020 

Special Minutes: 

12/28/2020 

Liquor License Renewal: 

Aspen Yoga Inc dba Louie’s Pizza My Heart 

Summary:   

Routine Board approvals. 

 

Notes: 

 

Liquor license for Louie’s Pizza has no modifications or changes.  There are no issues from 

the administration or police department.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran 

 

 

 

69

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

November 24, 2020 

  

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Regular Meeting held via zoom on Tuesday, November 24, 2020, was called to order at 6:30 

p.m. by Mayor Mary Bachran, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. Formal Video Record at: 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JNoftzQNNts 

Roll Call 

PRESENT 

Mayor Bachran 

Trustee Bear 

Trustee Budinger 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 Agenda Approval 

 

 Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and 

unanimously carried to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Announcements  
COVID-19 - Review of Established Policies & Current Updates: 

 Mayor Bachran briefly went over the COVID-19 protocols and guidelines. 

 Delta County is in the yellow stage.  

 Town Hall has put in place a new schedule of operation, increased sanitization, 

and remote office hours, as necessary.  

 Resolution 2020-15 – local disaster order, resolution 2020-08 – recommendation 

of the use of face coverings, resolution 2020-06 – authorizing town administrator 

to close certain facilities of the town, and COVID-19 response plan were included 

in the packet. 

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

70

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

 

COGCC Update (Colorado Oil & Gas Conservation Commission): 

 Trustee Knutson briefed the board members and the public on the COGCC update. 

 The report from the Trustee Knutson about the COGCC was included in the packet.  

 The rulemaking has been finalized.  

 
Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition: 

 Mayor Bachran presented Shop Safe, Shop Local Recognition to: 

o The Delta County Libraries – Paonia Branch 

o West Elk Wine and Spirit 

o Root and Vine Market 

o High Country Shopper 
  

Visitors & Guests: 

 Community member Suzanne Watson made the following comments that she was 

concerned with how the posting for the meetings and notices of the agenda are 

handled and minutes not being completed in a timely way.  

 Community member Paige Smith made the following comments. 

o A system for public comment to be part of the record and included in the 

agenda packet, and a way to formally respond to the public comment in a 

public way.  

 

Staff Reports 
 Administrator’s Report: 

 Submitted the COVID-19 and CDOT grants. 

 The Town Businesses and the North Fork Senior Connections grants have been 

processed. 

o Business grants were given to those businesses who turned in an 

application in need of assistance. 

o North Fork Senior Connections grants were given to those who turned in 

an application in need of assistance with their groceries, utility bills, and 

such. 

 Munidocs program added to online Municipal Code for publication of 

miscellaneous documents including resolutions and contracts.  

 Trustee Pattison made the following comments. 

o Status of the COVID-19 fund press release – Mayor is working on the 

press release. 

o Status of the scheduling a joint meeting with the board and planning 

commission in the works. 

o Status of the zoning and board of appeals on attorney’s report. 

 

Public Works report: 

 The report was included in the packet. 

 

71

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Police Report: 

 Chief informed the board of a juvenile investigation. 

 Installation of the mask sign done Friday near the high school and the road got 

vandalized again on Saturday – possibility of installing a camera to capture the 

person responsible for destroying town property.  

 Installation of the car cameras in the works.  

 A meeting with the Hotchkiss Marshal and Delta County Chief is in the works to 

talk about animal control.  

 

Attorney Report: 

 Franchise Agreement with the charter is in the process.  

 Worked on the minor subdivision with the Town Administrator. 

 Attorney gave a summary regarding the board of appeals. 

o Clean up of the municipal code under chapter 2 – addressing the creation 

of the zoning board of appeals. 

o One board was established to hear both zoning and building concerns and 

decision making on formal decisions of subdivisions. 

o Trustee Knutson is in favor of a combined zoning and planning board.  

 Trustee Pattison was concerned regarding the status of Colorado Code 

Consulting. 

o Attorney Nerlin stated the primary contact for CCC was out of town.  

o Provide an update at the next board meeting on December 15th regarding 

the outcome of the call between CCC and Attorney Nerlin. 

o Will work with staff for a proposed solution regarding CCC and present at 

the next meeting on December 15th. 

Disbursements 
 Treasurer’s Report: 

 Reviewed disbursements and payroll.  

 Disbursements and account analysis were included in the packet.  

 Continue to work on the 2021 budget. 

 

Disbursements Report: 

Motion by Trustee Knutson and seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried 

to approve the disbursements as provided.  

 

Public comments: 

 Community member Paige Smith made the following comments. 

o The amount of pay that was paid out to the Finance Officer, Public Works 

Director, and Town Administrator was higher than normal.  

o Clarification was given – the payout amount was higher due to paying out 

of PTO hours not used for time off.  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

72

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Regular Business 
2021 Budget Public Hearing: 

 Public Hearing opened to the board by Mayor Bachran: 

7:18 p.m. 

 Discussion ensued on the balanced 2021 budget.  

 A transmittal letter was included and can be viewed on the ClearGov website. 

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Trustee Pattison made the following questions: 

o Page 51 of the packet – parks – Arbor Day & Tree City paragraph at the 

end showing a $2 contribution per capita – was questioned where this goes 

towards – Administrator/Town Clerk Ferguson clarified the $2 goes 

towards planting, removal, and care of the Towns trees. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and carried with 5 ayes 

and 1 abstain. Voting Abstaining: Trustee Pattison abstained because it is work-related. 

Colorado Code Consulting Contract 

 Discussion ensued regarding the Colorado Code Consulting Contract - building 

department. Documents related were included in the packet.  

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 The current building official Dan Reardon was present and explained the plan 

review fee process. 

 Town Attorney Bo Nerlin stated the boards' option concerning the Colorado Code 

Consulting contract with the Town.  

o Have an executive session to discuss any legal or negotiations. 

o Board could terminate the contract and the building official will serve to 

the end of the contract - December 2020. 

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison   X  

Mayor Bachran      

73

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

o Board could negotiate the contract with amendments and direct staff to 

draft a revised contract and present it to the board at the November 1st 

meeting.  

 A suggestion from Trustee Pattison was to add amendments to the contract.  

 A suggestion from Trustee Johnson was to terminate the contract and then amend 

the contract.  

 A suggestion from Trustee Budinger was to terminate the contract and ask 

Colorado Code Consulting to reply to the RFP with the amendment to the 

contract.  

 Trustee Meck was in favor of putting out an RFP.  

 Trustee Knutson has concerns with hiring a new building inspector. 

 

Public Comment: 

 A community member suggested to adopt the Colorado Code Consulting fees and 

upload them on the website.  

 A community member suggested looking into setting up a board of appeals. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Meck and unanimously failed to 

pass to continue contract into the next year 2021 and extend the contract for one year.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Pattison to terminate the contract with Colorado Code 

Consulting and propose a revised contract for 3 months with a potential for renewal 

pending additional terms. 

 

Motion amended by Trustee Pattison, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to terminate the contract with Colorado Code Consulting at the end of 2020 and 

ask to establish a 3-month contract with the for the first quarter of 2021 with automatic 

one-month extensions pending negotiations. 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear  X   

Trustee Budinger  X   

Trustee Johnson  X   

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck  X   

Trustee Pattison  X   

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

74

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

 

Staff Retirement Plan Review and Update- 

The discussion ensued during the work session under the employee staff retirement plan 

review. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously 

carried to adopt recommendations of representative Shane Squibb for the employee 

retirement with Empowered Retirement. 

 

Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results 

 The Public Water System Discharge Permit Inspection Results from the State of 

Colorado and recommendations from staff were included in the packet.  

 No action was required documents were for informational purposes 

Building Permit Fee Structure- 

 Continued discussion by the Board regarding the building permit fee schedule. 

 The proposed fee schedule was included in the packet. 

 The current and proposed permit fee project valuation was in the packet.  

 The three scenarios using existing and proposed structure was included in the 

packet. 

 Trustee Pattison suggested adopting the simple fee schedule.  

 Town Attorney Bo suggested to use information from the 2018 building code and 

have input from the building official.  

 Trustee Knuston and Town Administrator suggested having a meeting with the 

Planning and Zoning Committee regarding this matter. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Bear, and unanimously carried to 

table discussion. 

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

75

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

 

 Revised 2021 Budget Calendar- 

 Discussion ensued by the board on setting the next meeting day and time.  

 Mayor Bachran stated the Board of Trustees budget work session meeting is to 

meet on Tuesday, November 3rd at 2:30 pm 

 

Braver Angels America Hold America Together discussion and possible action item 

Requested by Trustee Knutson.  

 Discussion ensued by Trustee Knuston regarding his requesting the Town signing 

the Braver Angels letter of support and that the board approves placement of a 

banner at the Twin Lakes property. 

 The support letter was included in the packet. 

 Two board members were not in favor of signing the letter or the placement of the 

banner. 

 Three community members were not in favor of the town signing the letter.  

 Suggestions were made and encouraged individuals to sign the letter.  

 

Consent Agenda 

 Regular Minutes: 

10/13/2020 

Special Minutes: 

8/20/2020 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried to 

approve consent agenda with corrections to October 13, 2020, regular minutes - add 

bullet points of Constantine Herchfields statement, add the rest of the Planning and 

Zoning commissioner members, and separate the Tree board from the committee reports. 

Mayor’s Report 
 Mayor’s Report 

 Honoring the Capital Christmas Tree event. 

o Lights and sirens starting from the Highway down into Grand Ave. 

o Paonia Junior-Senior High choir will be singing.  

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

76

8.



 

  

NOVEMBER 24, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 8 

 

o Purchased 2 banners with the monies from COVID-19 and the banner 

located near the High School was vandalized. 

 Administrator Fergusons goals are ready to send to the Mayor.  

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel report: 

 Meeting October 28, 2020, at 9:30 pm 

 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety report: 

 Meeting November 9th at 3:00 pm 

 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities report: 

 Met October 19, 2020, with the Administrator and Public Works Director. 

 PHS meter is in the works in getting completed.  

 Boxelder is in the works in getting completed. 

 Discussed the mapping project. 

 Inventory of equipment is in the works 

 The bulk station is in the works. 

 Discussed the creation of the water storage project. 

 Discussed the water production. 

 No meeting has been set.  

 

Space to Create: 

 Meeting one more time. 

 

Tree Board: 

 Met October 20th 

 The creation of a draft tree management plan is in the works. 

 The board would like to update the web with an updated pathway. 

 Paula Martin is working on the process for the tree city 2021 application. 

Adjournment 
 The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 8:41 pm 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

77

8.



  

DECCEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

December 15, 2020 

  

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Regular Meeting held Tuesday, December 15, 2020, was called to order at 6:31 p.m. by 

Mayor Mary Bachran, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. Formal Video Record at: 

 

Roll Call 

PRESENT 

Mayor Bachran 

Trustee Bear 

Trustee Budinger 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 Agenda Approval 

 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Meck and unanimously 

carried to table the executive session. 

 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to amend the agenda to move the executive session to the first meeting in 

January 2021. 

Announcements  

 None. 

 

Visitors & Guest 

 None 

Staff Reports 
 Administrator’s Report: 

 Investigating different methods for submitting comments on agenda items to the 

Board of Trustees. 

 Addressed the call forwarding to staff feature with Phonz Plus – This feature will 

be used should staff be out of the office.  

 An updated draft of the sections of the master plan to be prospectively emailed to 

the Planning Committee and the Board of Trustees for feedback.  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

78

8.



  

DECCEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

 The information sign to be installed at Poulos Park by end of the year. 

 COVID-19 update. 

o The administrator is evaluating ways to help businesses provided that the 

level of cases rises and enters into a red stage.  

 The administrators’ written report was included in the packet.  

 

Public Works report: 

 Update on the sanitary report – report included in the packet.  

 Mapping update – JDS Hydro and SGM are working on the mapping. 

 Addressed the 3 water leaks on Lamborn Mesa. 

o Leaks happened due to low temperatures in weather and faulty fittings 

 Bulk water station status update – currently working on the technical functions. 

 Directed public works staff to check the insulation and lids of all water meters. 

 C&N sidewalks have been completed.  

 Sander equipment is in repair – the mag chloride product is currently unavailable  

 Rise in levels of ammonia at the sewer plant during winter –  

o Methods are being looked into to resolve the issue.  

o Trustee Bear and Meck were concerned about the elevated levels of 

ammonia and sludge. 

o Public Works Director Loberg explained the different methods used to 

clean out the sludge.  
 

Public comment: 

 Community Member Suzanne Watson was concerned about the type of mag-

chloride being used on the streets.  

o Type of mag-chloride – liquid 

o Used after snow builds up on 2nd St. and Grand Ave, 3rd St. and Grand 

Ave, 3rd St. and Main Ave, and Apple Valley.  
 

Police Report: 

 The Police Department is fully staffed with 6 officers. 

 Announced the return of Officer Vassell. 

 New shifts – officers will be working 4 days / 10 hours – this consists of having 

more coverage early in the mornings and late at night.  

 Purchase of a new vehicle will be on the agenda for January. 

 Mayor announced that Chief Neil Ferguson's evaluation has been completed and 

will be presented on the agenda for January. 
 

Attorney Report: 

 Town Attorney's memorandum report was in the packet.  

 Topics discussed were – Paonia Ditch Company, Police Department, River Bank, 

Colorado Code Consulting. 
 

Disbursements 
 Treasurer’s Report: 

 Reviewed disbursements and payroll – documents were included in the packet. 

 Continue to work on the 2021 budget. 

 Recommended the adoption of Resolution 2020-23 & 2020-24 

 

Disbursements Report: 

Motion by Trustee Knutson and seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried 

to approve the disbursements as provided.  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

79

8.



  

DECCEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

 Trustee Pattison suggested having an annual cap with any one vendor  

o The administrator will be researching a policy establishment for this 

matter. 

End of Year Disbursement Approval: 

 Pre-authorization of payroll and disbursements for the end of the year 

 Payroll and disbursement documents will be included in the packet for the 

first meeting in January.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously 

carried to approve end of year payroll and disbursements. 

Regular Business 

Advisory Water Committee Appointments: 

 Discussion ensued regarding the appointments of the new water advisory board. 

 All 7 applicants' documents were included in the packet.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Bears, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to nominate Trustee Meck as the Town representative for the Water Advisory 

Committee.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Meck and unanimously 

carried to nominate Thomas Markle as the in-town representative for the Water 

Advisory Committee. 

 Trustee Pattison recused herself from voting – the nominee was her spouse.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Johnson and unanimously 

carried to nominate Mike Drake as the out-of-town/water company representative for 

the Water Advisory Committee. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Johnson and unanimously 

carried to nominate Philip Ceriani as the water company representative – ORC for the 

water system for the Water Advisory Committee.  

 

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Discussion ensued upon the staff nomination for the Water Advisory Committee 

o Community member Suzanne Watson was concerned with the staff 

nomination. 

o The Town Attorney stated that logically it would be the Public Works 

Director or the Administrator. 

o Trustee Bear suggested to leave it open – Trustee Knutson was in favor. 

o Leaving it open where both staff members can represent and participate 

whenever one is unable to attend.  

  

Acquisition of Snowplow Spreader: 

 Discussion ensued on the purchase of new equipment that was budgeted in the 

2020 budget for $12,000.  

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

80

8.



  

DECCEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

 Public Works Director Loberg discussed the 3 options and presented them to the 

Board.  

o The first choice was from the Tractor Supply store for $7,999 

o The second choice was from Varner Equipment for $8,507 

o The third Choice was from Northern Tool & Equipment for $7,070 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Johnson and unanimously 

carried to approve the purchase of the sander spreader from Tractor Supply.  

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Trustee Pattison questioned if the piece of equipment can be placed on a different 

truck 

o Public Works Director Loberg stated that it can be placed on a different 

truck.  

 

Public Comment: 

 None. 

 

2020-22 Accepting Coordinated Election Results: 

 Resolution 2020-22 accepting the results for the Back the Badge and Retail and 

Medical Marijuana sales within the Town limits. 

 Resolution 2020-22 was included in the packet 

 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to approve Resolution 2020-22.  

Resolution 2020-23 Mill Levy: 

 The resolution was in the packet 

 Treasurer King stated that the Mill Levy is just certifying the amount to Delta 

County which is determining property tax revenues for the Town. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Meck, and unanimously carried 

to approve Resolution 2020-23, Mill Levy. 

 

 Resolution 2020-24 Budget for 2021: 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

81

8.



  

DECCEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

 Mayor Bachran stated the Board received letters from Town Administrator and 

Chief requesting that their salary increases be deferred at a later time.  

 The administrator reiterated the only documents needed to be approved are the 

transmittal letter and resolution to get sent to the State.  

 Comments by Suzanne Watson and Page Smith were included in the permanent 

packet.  

 The budget book was in the packet – completed budget 2021 book be viewed on 

clear gov. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Knutson, and unanimously 

carried to approve Resolution 2020-2020-24 Budget for 2021. 

 

 

Resolution 2020-25 Local Disaster Declaration Extension  

 Discussion ensued to extend until March 2021. 

 The resolution was in the packet. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson, Seconded by Trustee Budinger and unanimously carried to 

approve Resolution 2020-25 Local Disaster Declaration Extension until March 2021.  

 

GAPS – Accessory Dwelling Unit Update: 

 The Governmental Affairs & Public Safety Committee presented the Board 

with their recommendations and summary on ADUs how it should be 

regulated.  

 Trustee Knutson commended the committee for their work 

 Trustee Bear suggested sending the draft ordinance to the Planning Committee 

for review.  

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Meck and carried with 5 ayes and 

1 nay to direct the GAPS Committee to draft as an ordinance and bring it back to the 

Board for review.  

 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear  X   

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

82

8.



  

DECCEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

 Town Attorney Nerlin stated that it was at the Board's discretion to send the 

draft to the Planning Commission for review first or Direct the packet 

materials to be reviewed by them.  

 

Christmas Lights Judges: 

 Winners will be announced at the first meeting in January. 

 1st place will receive $75 

 2nd Place will receive $50 

 3rd place will receive $25 

 

Consent Agenda 

 Regular Minutes: 

11/10/20 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Meck and unanimously carried to 

approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Mayor’s Report 
 Mayor’s Report 

 Announced the Christmas light judges 

o Mayor Bachran appointed Amanda Mojarro and her family 

o Attended a couple of Region 10 meeting regarding affordable housing and 

regional economic recovery. 

o Mayor Bachran was a panelist for the Great Lakes Community action partnership 

for creating small community entrepreneur eco-systems. 

 Administrator updated the Board on Colorado Code Consulting  

o No response has been received from CCC regarding the discontinuation of the 

existing contract and the proposed revision of the contract 

o CCC is in partnership with another company. 

o Town Administrator stated while attending the administrator’s meetings 

discussion was ensued about creating a municipal building department as one 

department.  

o Reached out to other communities to allow for the possibility of allowing their 

building inspectors to come to Paonia. 

o Setting up a meeting with the Planning Committee for 2021 to review the 

adoption of the 2018 building code.  

 

Finance & Personnel report: 

 Meeting December 16, 2020, at 10:00 am for check signing. 

 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety report: 

 Met December 7th at via zoom 

 Discussed Marijuana regulations and licensing 

 Discussed ADUs. 

 Set up a short-term rental Let’s session for January 14, 2021, at 6:00 pm via 

zoom. 

 Meeting January 11, 2020, at 3:00 pm via zoom. 

 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities report: 

 Met December 15, 2020 

 Discussed issues reported on by public works director 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck X    

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

83

8.



  

DECCEMBER 15, 2020 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

 Discussed the need for the community to shovel their sidewalks – add a reminder 

to the utility bill 

 School meter installation to be completed by end of 2020 

 Trustee Pattison suggested contracting someone to shovel sidewalks and bill the 

customer for the service. 

Tree Board: 

 Tree City application complete 

 2 seats will become vacant and will be on the agenda for January for re-

appointment. 

 

Executive Session 

 Tabled to the first meeting in January 2021. 

Adjournment 
 The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 8:19 pm 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

84

8.



  

DECEMBER 28, 2020 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Special Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

December 28, 2020 

  

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

The Special Meeting held Monday, December 28, 2020, was called to order at 3:30 p.m. by 

Mayor Mary Bachran, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. Virtual Meeting. 

Roll Call 

PRESENT 

Mayor Bachran 

Trustee Bear 

Trustee Budinger – arrived at 3:32 p.m. 

Trustee Knutson 

Trustee Pattison 

Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Meck - absent 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 Agenda Approval 

 

 Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Regular Business 

Discussion ensued regarding the acquisition of a police patrol vehicle. Chief Ferguson proceeded 

to inform the Board about the 2020 Equinox and request their approval for the purchase from 

Hellman Chevrolet effective January 1, 2021.  

Board & Staff discussion points: 

 Kelly Blue Book value 

 Cost of vehicle $22,299 

 The purchase date will be in the year 2021 

 Cost of decals  

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Knutson and unanimously 

carried to approve the purchase of the 2020 Equinox as presented. 

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck    X 

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

Council Member For Against Abstain Absent 

Trustee Bear X    

Trustee Budinger X    

Trustee Johnson X    

Trustee Knutson X    

Trustee Meck    X 

Trustee Pattison X    

Mayor Bachran      

85

8.



  

DECEMBER 28, 2020 SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

 

Adjournment 
 The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Bachran at 3:44 pm 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Mary Bachran, Mayor  

86

8.



87

8.



88

8.



89

8.



 

January 5, 2021 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear: Trustee Budinger: Trustee Johnson: 

Trustee Knutson: Trustee Meck: 

 

Trustee Pattison: Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

90

9.



 

December 17, 2020 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) 

and not involving: any specific employees who have requested discussion 

of the matter in open session; any member of this body or any elected 

official; the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of 

an elected official; or personnel policies that do not require the discussion 

of matters personal to particular employees; specific to Town 

Administrator 6-month review. 

For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving 

legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-

402(4)(b); Specific to Eric Pace v. Town of Paonia 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bear Trustee Budinger Trustee Johnson 

Trustee Knutson Trustee Meck Trustee Pattison Mayor Bachran: 

 

 

 

91

10.


	Top
	.	ASF - Christmas Light Winners
	ASF - Christmas Light Winners
	Christmas Light Winners

	1.	ASF - Staff Reports
	ASF - Staff Reports
	Administrator's Report
	Public Works Report
	Blotter

	2.	ASF -Treasurer's Report
	ASF -Treasurer&#39;s Report
	Finance Director Report
	Nov2020_EndofMonth
	Nov_2020 AccountAnalysis

	3.	ASF - Disbursements
	ASF - Disbursements
	Disbursements_2021_Redacted
	End of Year 2020 Disbursements_Redacted

	4.	Resolution 2021-01 Public Posting
	ASF - Resolution 2021-01 Public Posting
	2021-01 Public Postings

	5.	Paonia Tree Board Appointments
	ASF - Paonia Tree Board Appointments
	Tree Board - Martin Application
	Tree Board - Hottinger Application
	Tree Board - Whoolilurie Application
	Tree Board - Baril Application

	6.	ASF - Advisory Water Committee Terms
	ASF - Advisory Water Committee – Term Limits

	7.	Ordinance 2021-TBD Outdoor Lighting Regulations
	ASF - Ordinance 2021-TBD Outdoor Lighting Regulations
	Ordinance 2021-TBD DRAFT Proposed Outdoor Lighting Regulations_with CLERK NOTES
	Comments_Dark Sky Lighting Ordinance_9Jan2021

	8.	ASF - Consent Agenda
	ASF - Consent Agenda
	112420_DRAFTMIN
	121520_RegMin_Draft
	122820_SpecialMin_Draft
	Consent Agenda - LLR

	9.	ASF -Committee Reports
	ASF -Committee Reports

	10.	ASF - Executive Session
	ASF - Executive Session

	Bottom

